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ASSEMBLYMAN Jo EDWARD CRABIEL (THE CHAIRMAN)~ Thisl 

public hearing will come to or~er. I am Assemblyman Crabiel of 

Middlesex County, Chairman of the Highways 9 Transportation and 

Public Utilities Committee of the Assemblyo On my left is 

Assemblyman Keegan of Passaic County, a member of the Committeeo 

On my right is Assemblyman Kraut of Hudson County, one of the 
I 

sponsors of two of the bills that we are considering this morning0 

This will be a public hearing basically on Assembly Bill 184 9 

which concerns mandatory drivers' licenses for trucks; Assembly 

Bill 235, which requires tachometers to be installed on certain 

trucks; and Assembly Bill 442, which is known as the speed-

differential bille These bills were introduced in tre Assembly 

during this session and have been in committee and because of the 

fact that there has been an increasing number of accidents on our 

highways 9 particularly pertaining to trucks~ it was felt that it 

would be wise to hold a public hearing on this matter to see if 

we could come to a meeting of the minds concerning what might be 

done to help stop this high accident ratio that has been occurring 

on our highwayse 

Come in 9 Mro Flynno Assemblyman Flynn of Essex 9 a member of 

the Comm1ttee 9 is just arriving and will take his seat, pleaseo 

Before we commence 51 I presume that everyone who cares to 

speak on any of these matters has already registered with meo 

If you havenVt 9 please come forward at this time~ 

We will commence this hearing by having Assemblyman Kraut, 

one of the sponsors of the bil£9 talk on his particular bills0 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ALAN KRAUT: With regard to the two bills which 

I introduced in the Assembly, Number 184, referring to the 

necessity of obtaining a special license for truck drivers operat-

ing vehicles which have a gross weight of vehicle and load in 

excess of 4,000 pounds, and Assembly Bill 235, which calls for 

the equipment of a commercial vehicle semitrailer or tractor of 

a gross weight in excess of 8,000 pounds with a tachometer, as 

the bill says - the actucal word should be "tachograph0 and an 

amendment is in order if it has not already been amended - let 

me say that these bills were introduced by me after my many, many 

years of exper~nce in representing insurance carriers insuring 

trucks and buseso For the moment we will deal only with the: 

trucks o 

These bills were introduced in the interest of safetyo First, 

with regard to Assembly Bill 184, for many years operators of buses 

have had to obtain a special license after a proper physical 

examination, and I assume that after proper trainingo At the 

present time, I believe there 1s a necessity in this state of 

having operators of trucks in excess of 4,000 pounds or some other 

agreed-upon weight to obtain a similar special licenseo Driving 

a tractor or a trailer at the present time is a specialized 

occupation. Before a man should be permitted to operate one of 

these heavy vehicles over our highways, I believe he should show 

the physical ability and the mental ability to operate such a 

vehicle. I think he should pass a physical examinationo I 

feel he should pass a test to show his ability to operate one 

of these vehicleso 

With regard to Assembly Bill 235, requiring the equipment of 
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a vehicle over 8,000 pounds to be equipped with a tachograph, 

I think this is a most important bill~ The equipment of a vehicle 

with such an instrument, I believe,provides a traffic cop on the 

rear axle of every single truck. Human beings being what they 

are-an:l all of us more or less operate our vehicles on occasions 

in excess of the motor vehicle limits - I feel with the equipment 

of one of these instruments there is a record kept of the speed 

of this vehicle in questiono I think it will be for the benefit 

not only of the driver who can use this graph from the tachograph 

in defense of any charge against him for excess of speed or some 

other charge, but for the trucking lines because experience has 
I 

shown that the use of these instruments slows up the vehicle, 

at least within the legal limits 9 all to the benefit of the 

trucking lineso 

Now I have asked one of the men of a company who manufactures 

these tachographs, and I believe there is more than one company 

that produces them, but we have one right in New Jersey, to come 

hereo He is here and I have asked him to speak later on to show 

the technicalities of the operation of this particular instrumentQ 

I feel that with the adoption of Assembly Bill 184 requiring 

the truck drivers to obtain special licenses, indicating their 

ability, physical and mental, to operate a truck, and the adoption 

of Assembly Bill 235 requiring the equipment of these large trucks 

with these instruments, it will tend to a better and safer 

operation over the roads of our stateo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ Just a minute, Mro Kraulo Do any of 

the members of the Committee have any questions to ask Mro Kraut? 

Mro FlynnJ 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: No., 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ Very, wello That will be all .. 

We will hear from Major Thomas Forkin, representing the 

New Jersey State Policeo 

MAJOR THOMAS Fa FORKIN: Are you talking in connection with 

Mro KrautRs two bills7 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I think because these bills are all inter-

related9 we will allow you to talk on all three bills in one 

presentationo It is possible that we might want to recall you 

or ask the chance to direct some questions to you as the hearing 

unfoldso But they are so interrelated that I believe the best 

thing to do is direct your remarks to the entire three billso 

MAJOR FORKIN: Thank you .. Members of the Legislature and 

gentlemen: I appreciate and welcome this opportunity to present 

the State Police viewpoint on speed differentials and legislation 

proposed in Assembly Bill 4420 

During the month of November 1959 9 State Police radar oper-

ations conducted on principal public highways disclosed that 

better than 10 per cent of the 18,111: trucks checked travelled 

in excess of the posted 50 miles per hour speed limit .. A maJority 

of the trucks travelling in excess of the speed limit were heavy 

tractors and trailerso 

During the first ten months of this calendar year, the State 

Police investigated 1032 accidents on four main multi-lane highways 
/ 

which are heavily, travelled by trucks., (Routes 1, 22, 46 and 130 .. ) 

Three hundred and eighty-eight of the 1032 accidents involved 

truckso The remaining 644 did not involve truckso 
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Thirty deaths occurred in the JBO truck accidents, and only 

11 in the 644 non-truck accidents. 

During the twelve-month period ending June 30, 1959, 
the State Police investigated 1,886,/accidents in which trucks 

I 

were involved on all public highways in our areas of policing 

responsibility throughout the State. 

Four hundred and eighty-four or more than 25 per cent of 

these accidents occurred on these same four principal public 

highwayso Almost half of the deaths that occurred from truck 

accidents1in ouriea.reas of responsibility throughout the state 

occurred on four main public highways. I am, of course, outlining 

State Police experience only. Other accidents have occurred and 

were investigated by policing agencies other than the State Policeo 

There is a definite need for a truck speed differential with 

a mandatory keep-right prov1s1on on the four principal public 

highways I have used as an example, and on e·ome other public roads 

within the stateo Our experience is that speed and driving 

related to $peed greatly contribute to the truck accident frequency 

and truck accident fatalities, more so when impact force is a 

factoro 

The motor vehicle is a lethal conveyanceo Its use must be 

rigidly regulated for the safety and protection of the publico 

The speed at which it is permitted to be operated governs its 

potential for destructiono As in the case of heavy vehicles, 

speed plus weight increase this potentialo 

When the elements of speed 9 weight, and I might add great 

size, are present, the peril is increasedo 

An enforceable speed differential on pome publ~c hjghways 
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will reduce the tragic loss of life experienced 1n truck accidentso 

It will reduce their frequency, especially those in which the 

truck is the striking vehiclea The impact force will be decreasedo 

Less£r speed will provide opportunities to stop more quicklyo 

A differential will discourage truck drivers from attempting 

to maintain a maximum speed in competition with other vehicles 

and wi 11 insure better compliance with "safe following distance" 

provisions of the statute due to a mandatory slowing down of 

truck traffic. 

A "keep to the rightrm provision must be included in any truck 

speed differential 'legislation. 

This provision would: 

Eliminate "jockeying" by drivers attempting to maintain speed 

and favorable positiono 

Discourage careless and dangerous overtaking and passing by 

trucks. 

Prevent ;"bunching" and '•tai 1-gating" at intersections and 

on grades o, 

Diminish the m1xing of passenger car - truck traffic, keeping 

slower moving ve~icles to the right, decreasing the possibility 

of rear-end accidentso 

A carefully planned program of truck speed differentials, 

including a "keep to the right" provision is Justified in the 

public interesto The Division of State Police is in accord with 

the objectives of Assembly Bill 442G 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Major, do you have any experience with 

accidents which occur because of the fact that a truck is moving 

slower than the normal traffic or other traffic on the highway? 
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MAJOR FORKIN: Our experience in that for the twelve-month 

period dnding last June 30th is that of fifty truck fatalities, 

nine were the result of rear-end collisions involving trucks, most 

of which were caused by traffic moving up on slower-moving vehiclesa 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Is it your position then, MaJor, or the 

position of the State Police that the mandatory-right provision 

as you have proposed it, to be coupled with the differential, 

would take care of that eventu~lity? 

MAJOR FORKIN: It would help it, as I said, by eliminating 

Jockeying by drivers attempting to maintain speed and favorable 

positiono What I mean by that is: If the legislation were adopted, 

a mandatory speed ten miles less for certain trucks than passenger 

vehicles, a truck driver then would be slowed downo He would keep 

to the righto He would not be in competition with other traffic 

on the h1ghwayo He would not attempt to maintain maximum speed. 

What I mean by that 1s: He would not cut in and out of traffic 

coming down a grade, for example, pulling out into the other traffic 

lanes in order to maintain speed going up another grade and then 

falling back. He would know that he could not exceed 40 miles 

an hour; he would not try to maintain a favorable position on 

the highway in competition with other traffic. It would slow him 

down and I do believe that it would decrease rear-end truck 

accidents. 

Now 9 of course in regard to rear-end truck accidents, it is 

all according to where you are talking about - it f3 all according 

to wHat the speed of the vehicle in the front is maintaining - it 

is all according to what the speed of the striking vehicle 1s. You 

canvt quote it as a general blanket thingo You must talk about 
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specific instances or occurrenceso My answer to the whole thing 

is that I do believe it will decrease rear-end accidents on the 

public highways by slowing down traffico 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mr. Flynno 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No questions. 

SENATOR JOHN Eo TOOLAN: Major, did you say it would increase 

or decrease rear-end accidents? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Decreaseo A mandatory keep-to-the-right pro-

vlsion would also remove the slow-moving vehicle, keeping him 

to the right and taking him away from other traffic, faster traffic, 

and he wouldn't interchange with this traffico And I do believe 

that this would also contribute to a decrease in these accidentso 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: MaJor, do we have a law now or signs 

all posted along the highways for trucks to keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Noo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: We don 1 t7 

MAJOR FORKIN: Noo 

ASSEMBLYMAN CRABIEL: MaJor, doesn't the present law require 

everyone to keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Yes, it doeso But if you have a speed dif-

ferential, you will have a problem if you don't separate the 

traffico 

highwayo 

You will have two different speeds maintained on the 

You will have a 50 miles per hour speed and you will have 

a 40 miles per hour speedo 

ASSEMBLYMAN CM.BIEL: Well, doesn't the present law that we 

are now operating under direct that all drivers, whether trucks 

or passenger cars, keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Yes, except when passing. 
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MAJOR FORKIN: Our experience 1n that for the twelve-month 

period ending last June 30th is that of fifty truck fatalities, 

nine were the result of rear-end collisions involving trucks, most 

of which were caused by traffic moving up on slower-moving vehicles0 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Is it your position then 9 Major, or the 

position of the State Police that the mandatory-right provision 

as you have proposed it, to be coupled with the differential, 

would take care of that eventuality? 

MAJOR FORKIN: It would help it, as I said, by eliminating 

Jockeying by drivers attempting to maintain speed and favorable 

positiono What I mean by that is: If the legislation were adopted, 

a mandatory speed ten miles less for certain trucks than passenger 

vehicles, a truck driver then would be slowed down. He would keep 

to the right. He would not be in competition w1th other traffic 
I 

on the highwayo He would not attempt to maintain maximum speedo 

What I mean by that is: He would not cut in and out of traffic 

coming down a grade, for example, pulling out into the other traffic 

lanes in order to maintain speed going up another grade and then 

falling back. He would know that he could not exceed 40 miles 

an hour; he would not try to maintain a favorable position on 

the highway in competition with other traffico It would sJow him 

down and I do believe that it would decrease rear-end truck 

accidents. 

Now, of course in regard to rear-end truck accidents, it is 

all according to where you are talking about - it i~ all according 

to what the speed of the vehicle in the front is maintaining - it 

is all according to what the speed of the striking vehicle 1s. You 

canYt quote it as a general blanket thing. You must talk about 
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specific instances or occurrenceso My answer to the whole thing 

is that I do believe it will decrease rear-end accidents on the 

public highways by slowing down traffico 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mr6 Flynno 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No questionso 

SENATOR JOHN Eo TOOLAN: Major, did you say i~ would increase 

or decrease rear-end accidents? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Decreaseo A mandatory keep-to-the-right pro-

vision would also remove the slow-moving vehicle, keeping him 

to the right and taking him away from other traffic, faster traffic, 

and he wouldn't interchange with this traffico And I do believe 

that this would also contribute to a decrease in these accidentso 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Major, do we have a law now or signs 

all posted along the highways for trucks to keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Noo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: We don 9 t7 

MAJOR FORKIN: Noo 

ASSEMBLYMAN CRABIEL: Major, doesn't the present law require 

everyone to keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Yes, it doeso But if you have a speed dif-

ferential, you will have a problem if you don't separate the 

traffico You will have two different speeds maintained on the 

highwayo You will have a 50 miles per hour speed and you will have 

a 40 miles per hour speedo 

ASSEMBLYMAN CRABIEL: Well, doesn't the present law that we 

are now operating under direct that all drivers, whether trucks 

or passenger cars, keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Yes, except when passingo 
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~HAIRMA.N CRABIEL: Now, are you saying if you have a speed 

differential, you don't need to have a mandatory keep to the 

right? That is already in the law, isn 9 t it? 

MAJOR FORKIN: If you have vehicles operating on a highway 

at two different speeds, then if you do not have a mandatory 

keep to the right provision, I do believe that you will increase 

rear-end accidentso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: You have missed the pointo The point of 

my question is that presently the law, as is now, says you must 

keep to the right except when passinga 

MAJOR FORKIN: That 9 s righto 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Now, if the speed differential law is 

passed, what does that have to do with the present law of 

mandatory keep to the right except when passing? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Well, it would have to be specific for trucks 

to remove the slow-moving vehicles and separate the vehicles that 

are going at a higher rate of speed from the slower-moving 

vehicles a 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Well, doesn't this truck now have to 

keep to the right and if he had a ten-mile differential, he would 

still have to keep to the right? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Of course, all vehicles must keep to the right 

now, v~hicles of all types, except when passingo But it is our 

experience that vehicles, especially these heavy vehicles, some 

heavy vehicles in some locations, in order to maintain speed in 

competition with the speed of other vehicles on the highway, will 

Jockey all over the highway to maintain this speed, and as I said, 

maintain favorable position at intersections, grades, hills, any 
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place where this speed can be maintainedo My thinking there is 

that with the provision of trucks keep right, you will eliminate 

this conditiono 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: As I understand it, you do not advocate 

a blanket 10 miles anl hour differential, but you advocate a 

differential at selected locations throughout the stateo Is 

that correct? 

MAJOR FORKIN: We are in accord with the provisions of the 

billo We think that a ten mile differential is Justified at 

certain carefully selected locations where the problem is, 
J 

and I have tried to pinpoint for the State Police where our 

problem exists, on these four principal truck routes: Routes 

1, 130, 22, 46 and otherso This is where our problem exists 

todayo It is thereo I donut think anybody will testlfy that 

it is not thereo I believe that A-442 is a step forward in 

doing something about ito I believe it will eliminate accidentso 

I believe it will eliminate all the evils that I spoke abouto 

'These are two main north-south highways, from one end of 

the state to the other, 1 and 130c 22 and 46 are east-west high-

wayso I believe that our problem there is caused by the inter-

mingling of normal passenger traffic on these highways mixing 

with our regular intrastate truck traffic and the heavy inter-

state truck traffic that uses these four principal highwayso 

Here, as far as the State Police is concerned, is where the problem 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Would you have any knowledge of the 

percentage of trucks there are in New Jersey as compared to 

passenger cars? 
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MAJOR FORKIN: No, I do noto 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Would you have any knowledge as to 

whether there are more accidents percentagewise by trucks than 

there are passenger cars? 

MAJOR FORKIN: In our areas, noo 

JOHN Eo TOOLAN: May I have that answer explaimd - whether 

or not there are more truck accidents percentagewise than there 

are with vehicles that are classified as pleasure cars or not 

commercial vehicles? 

MAJOR FORKIN: As I understood the question, you are talking 

about the total number of accidents that we 1nvestigateo Is 

that true? You are not including anything else but the total 

volume of accidents? 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Well, I am talking about the accidents 

that you are familiar withQ In other words, the State Police 

are familiar with what all accidents on the state highways? 

MAJOR FORKIN: On a good portion of the state highwayso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: But the State Police are not familiar 

with accidents on local and county roads? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Yes, we area We are talking about state 

highways and county and township roads in our areas of policing 

responsibi 1l tyo 

During the fiscal year ending last June 30th, to answer 

senator Toolan's question, the State Police invest1gated on 

public roads, not including the Turnpike and Parkway, in our areas 

of policing responsibility approximately 8,538 accidentso Of 

this total number of accidents, a little better than 1000 - I 

think I gave you the figure a minute ago - 1886 of these accidents 
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were truck involvedo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: The reason I asked that question - I 

have before me copy of "New Jersey Traffic Accidents Facts of 

1959," and it is indicated that truck accidents, accidents in 

which trucks are involved, amount to 9a6 per cent of the total 

accidentso Now, your figures there seem to be considerably 

different because you are saying 1800 and some out of a total 

of 8500, which would indicate double this figure in this publication 

which is put out by the Attorney Genera1ws Officeo I was trying 

to develop the percentage - as to whether trucks are culprits in 

this situation or whether this is a universal problem of traffic 

MAJOR FORKIN: I am talking about our experience, of course, 

in our own areas of responsibility, and, as I have said in the 

statement, of course, there are other enforcement agencies who 

investigated other accidentso These figures I am not talking 

about nowo The full state information is conta1ned in that 

book from the Bureau of Traffic Safetyo That is why I separated 

this in my statemento 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ In other words, it develops from what 

you are saying and what the total figures are that the~e are more 

accidents percentagewise on state highways or areas of your 

responsibility than there are throughout the rest of the stateo 

MAJOR FORKIN: What I am saying, basically, here is -
I 

what I have said - is that throughout the state we investigated 

1886 truck accidents during the year ending June 30tho Of those 

1886 accidents, 484 of them occurred on these four highwayso 

These four highways are several hundred miles of highways - a few 
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hundred miles of highways. N~w we police throughout the state 

approximately 18 9 000 miles of highways - all types of highways, 

county, federal, municipal, township roadso On the few hundred 

miles of roads, to try to pinpoint what I am attempting to say, 
I 

we have 25 per cent of our truck accidentso On the other 

approximately 17,000 miles of roads, we have 75 per cent of 

our accidentso To us the problem exists on certain highways 

within the state and here is where we think that a careful program 

of speed differentials would be useful and in the public interest 

because this is where our problem iso This is where our accidents 

are occurringo This is where our deaths are occurring. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Has the State Police made any analysis 

of the accidents on those four particular highways to determine 

how many of those accidents were attributable to speed? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Assemblyman Crabiel, we have all kinds of 

statistics in connection with our accidents, of courseo We study 

all of our accidentsa We have any sort of statistics that you 

might care to have available to youo I do not have all of them 

now to present to youo However, we would be very happy to present 

to the Committee anything that we have in connection with this 

problemu 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Assemblyman Davis, one of the sponsors of 

the bill, is here and he has to get to the other meetingo He 

would li'ke to ask a question .. Assemblyman Davis .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN Wo DAVIS: Major, I just wondered, is the 

percentage of fatalities in the accidents in which trucks are 

involved significant? 

MAJOR FORKIN: It is where the problem exists on these 
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highwayso We do not say that there is a problem on all highways 

within the state in all areaso We cannot say that on Route 130 

the problem that exists there and where we advocate support of 

the objectives of this bill - we cannot apply them against 

highways, sayj in Cape May County where there is little or no 

truck traffic or in some rural counties in other sections of the 

stateo The percentages on some highways do indicate the problem 

and the need on those highwayso 

ASSEMBLYMAN CRABIEL: Have you seen any statistics from 

other states that h,ave similar legislation? 

MAJOR FORKIN: In connection with what? 

CHAIRIVIA.N CRABIEL: With the speed differentialo Let me ask 

you this question: Are there any other states that have speed 

differential legislation? 

MAJOR FORKIN: It is my understanding that about 35 of the 

states do have speed dlfferentialso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: And have you ever seen any statistics -

before and after statistics - so to speak as, to what happened? 

MAJOR FORKIN: I have seen them, but I am not qualified to 

interpret 5 them .. 

CHAIRIVIA.N CRABIEL: Would you know whether they work it on a 
\ 

statewide basis or on a selective basis? 

MAJOR FORKIN: I do not know whether all of them are similar, 

statewide or selectiveo I am not sureo Some of them work it on 

a statewide and some of them don 9 t, I assumeo But I have 'a listing 

of these states here that do have speed differentials if you are 

interested in ito 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I think the Committee has a listing of 
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thosea 

l\JIA.JOR FORKIN: The Committee has that? 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Yeso 

.Any other questions? Mr$ Keegano 

AS SEMBL 'lMAN KEEGAN: No ., 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Do you have comments as to the other 

billj the bill which would require special licenses for truck drivers? 

MAJOR FORKIN: Well, I believe that a special license for 

tractor-trailer drivers -- we would support a bi 11 like thato 

We think that a tractor-trailer driver should have some formalized 

training which he would have to have if he were to qualify to 

operate a tractor-trailer if there were legislation of that sort 

enacted., 

I do believe that it would be in the public interest and it 

would be a further step for traffic safetyc It would promote 

traffic safetyo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Does the State Police regulate traffic on 

the New Jersey Turnpike and/or the Garden State Parkway? 

MAJOR FORKIN: The State Police are responsible for policing 

both of those highwayso We furnish 92 men on the Turnpike, and I 

believe a similar number of men on the Parkway., I think the figure 

there is about 85" 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: You mentioned four specific highways 

beforeo Would you include in those recommendations the New Jersey 

Turnpike and/or the Garden State Parkway? 

MAJOR FORKIN: I believe that the Turnpike Authority has 

over the period of years it has been in operation made tremendous 

efforts to provide traffic safety on the highwayo I know that 
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they have competent traffic engineerso Our Turnpike Commanderf 

is competent and qualified to enforce the regulations which the 

Turnpike has promulgated as a result of the legislation which 

permitted them to do soo I believe that the Turnpike and the 

Parkway would be the first to recognize any need for any safety 

measures and I believe that, they have enacted tnemo The reputation 

of the highway is that it is one of the safest highways in the 

world and I believe that the Turnpike Authority should be allowed 

to adopt their own regulations 9 and also the Parkway, in connection 

with the regulation of traffico They have done everything, as 

far as I ever could determine,to promote traffic safety in the 

best public interesto They are constantly on top of their problems 

and I would not recommend that this legislation apply to the 

Turnpike or the Parkwayo 

Now, the Parkway 9 of course, does not have the truck traffic 

problem that other roads haveo Above Exit 90 on the Parkway 

there are no trucks allowedo The Turnpike and the public highways 

are dissimilaro The Turnpike has no gradeso It has multi-laned 

hlghwayso It has no lefthand turns, no traffic lightso I am 

sure that a truck, for instance, traveling at miles an, hour 

or 60 miles an hour on the Turnpike would be much safer than on a 

public road with all its hazardso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: You have answered my next question partiallyo 

I wanted to ask what makes the New Jersey Turnpike, for instance, 

safer than Route 1 from New Brunswick to Trenton now where you have 

just completed a barrier curb through the whole length of Route lo 

MAJOR FORKIN~ Well 9 the road characteristics are dissimilaro 

As I said 9 you have practically no grade,so You have no left-hand 
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turnso You have no traffic lights. You have no intersections. 

You have no highway cutouts for entrances and exits to business 

houseso All these hazards are eliminated on the Turnpike. 
, 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: .Any further questions? 

Do you have any comments on the tachometer bill, mandatory 
-tachometer? 

MAJOR FORKIN: I havenvt too much comment on ito Talking 

purely from an enforcement standpoint, according to the wording of 

the bill, we would not be able to use the tachometer as evidence 

in any of our enforcement worka I believe the other features 

should be discussed by people other than myselfa 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Major, if you could use the records of 

the tachometer, would you then approve of it7 

MR. TOOLAN~ Pardon me, but we did not hear the questiono 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If the police could use the records of 

the tachograph, would they then approve of it? 

MAJOR FORKIN: I believe that we would approve anything 

that would assist us in the promotion of traffic safety. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Do you know anything about the accuracy 

of tachographs? 

MAJOR FORKIN: No. I do not. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Any other questions? 

Thank you very much, MaJoro 

I 

I will call on Commissioner Joseph Morecraft and/or General 

Wanamaker as you desire, Commissionero Commissioner Morecraft of 

the New Jersey Turnpike will speako 

JOSEPH MORECRAFT, JR.: Gentlemen, in presenting our arguments 

this morning, we want to confine our recommendations entirely to 
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the New Jersey Turnpike and do not care to make any recommendations 

concerning any state highways, township roads or other public 

roadso 

Our experience and our comments are confined chiefly to 

the Turnpike and we would like to have you bear that in mind in 

anything that we might presento 

We agree with the State Police MaJor here who has indicated 

that the Turnpike is not similar to any of your state highwayso 

As he has indicated 9 it is a road that is without any extensive 

grades, not exceeding 3 per cent 9 good sight distances 9 wid~ 

shoulders and north of Camden it is a three-lane highway in each 

directiono There are no intersectionsa There are no traffic 

lightso There are no left-hand turns~ all of which makes it a 

great deal different as compared to the freeways and the state 

highways of New Jerseyo 

These conditions are not similar to any other express high-

way in the statea We feel that we must exercise our best 

Judgment based upon our experience in making the recommendation 

that there be on the Turnpike no truck speed different1al0 At 

each interchange there is a permanent sign designating the 

authorized speed then in effect on the Turnpike as well as the 

general weather conditions prevailingo In time of adverse weather 

conditions 9 this sign posts a 35 miles per hour limit and advises 

of the existence of ice~ snow 9 fog 9 wind or traffic congestion 

between certain designated interchangeso In addition, large over-

head neon signs are built over or adjacent to the roadway at 63 
locations which display signals "drive slow 9 Haccident,u "fog, 

ice 9 snow aheado" The control of speed by means of these signs 
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and other devices, as enforced by organizations consisting of 

92 members of the State Police, give the Turnpike traveler far 

greater protection than it is believed can be found on any public 

highway., 

So, therefore, we would ask and recommend that as far as 

this bill effecting the differential, tre truck differential 

speed, it shall not affect the Turnpike regulations., At the 

present time we make our regulations based on the experience of 

our traffic official, the State Highway Captain, and then present 

them to the state for approvala And I want to say that if our 

experience from now on indicates that there should be a change 

in these regulations, including the truck speed differential, we 

shall act promptly in making that change and making that recom-

mendation, and we at the present time would have the authority t~ 

make that change under our present setup. We would like to have 

that condition continue, so that if we should find it would be 

necessary that a speed differential on trucks be made, we would 

have the privilege of doing it and recommending it and sending it 

to the state for approval., Our operating head of the New Jersey 

Turnpike, our Executive Director, General W. Wo Wanamaker is 

presento If there is anything so far as data is concerned which 

you desire, statistics or further information, I am sure that he 

will be glad to present our case to youo 

CHAIRIVIAN CRABIEL: Mro Keegan? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: No questionso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mro Flynn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No questionsa 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: General Wanamaker, would you care to 
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answer a few questions, please. 

General, what is the safety record on the Turnpike as against 

the public highways? 

GENERAL WAN.AMAKER: Well, on a fatal accident frequency, we 

are now about lo65 per hundred million vehicle miles and 

on our public highways, I imagine it is somewheres in the 

magnitude of 5 or 60 

CHARIMAN CRABIEL: Of your total acciden~ on the Turnpike, 

what percentage of those are truck involved? 

GENERAL WANAMAKER: In the period from 1952, when we opened, 

through 1958, seven full years of record, we averaged about 10 per 

cent trucks on the Turnpike and trucks are involved in 25 per cent 

of the accidentsc If you take it on another kind of a ratio in 

which you speak of the vehicles involved and their exposure rate, 

which is a measure of their length of travel, trucks are involved 

in 70 per cent more accidents than the other passenger carso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: With an experience rating like that, 

wouldn't it indicate that some more control should be put on 

trucks? 

GENERAL WANAMAKER: Well, sir, there is no doubt but that 

with an experience like that it would focus attention on what to 

do about truckse There is no doubt of ito If you talk about 

fatal accidents, 38 per cent of our fatal accidents and 42 per cent 

of our fatalities involved truckso So from those statistics alone, 

one would say how can we minimize it or lessen it? The problem is 

exactly thato Would a speed differential do it or is it something 

else? 
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CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I am thinking back to Major Forkin's 

testimony when he was indicating, I think, that trucks were involved 

on the four state highways in about 20 per cent of the acc1dentso 

GENERAL WANAMAKER: As I heard his figures, it was about 

thato 

1 CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: And if you are saying that your trucks are 

involved in more than double that, doesn't that indicate that 

certainly speed - and the facts are that your speed limit is 

higher than the speed limit on the other highways'_ has something 

to do with accidents? 

GENERAL WANAMAKER: Well, I think it is something we have 

to analyze very carefully and let me make again clear in that 

seven-year period I mentioned, ten per cent of our traffic was 

truck traffic and twenty-five per cent of the accidents were 

accidents in which trucks were involvedo Now, if we get down 

to Just fatal accidents - and I don 9 t mean getting down to it -

but I am talking about the really severe accidents, we have found 

that 40 per cent of them involve trucks, and of those 40 per cent, 

three-fourths are rear-end collisionse And of that three-fourths, in 

another three-fourths, the truck was the forward vehicleo 

Now let me say further, sir, to begin with, on the Turnpike 

we have probably the most complete analysis of accidents that 

could be had, not Just our Turnpike, but other Turnpikes, because 

we know every vehicle and every type of vehicle and exactly the 

trip it took and exactly ~hen it took it. There are some things 

that are unable to be determined, such as the exact speed of the 

vehicles involved in an accident and in nurreroust03.S~s it is not 

always possible for the police to know or to find out reasonably 

closely the speed of the two vehicleso But nonetheless those 
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statistics, when you get down to trucks, stand out, that 75 
-

per cent of them in fatal accidents are rear-end collisions 

and of those in 75 per cent of the cases 9 the truck was the forward 

vehicle 9 something hit~lt behindo So we have to be very careful 

in an analysis of those accidents to see whether a speed differential 

would be the thing to reduce accidents with truchso If you go 

through those 177 accidents, you will find out that a speed 

differential could possibly have bettered the situation in some 

of themo It might not have worsened ito You can pick out, of 

course, accidents in which a vehicle was hit by a bus from tre rear 

or a truck was hit by another truck, and one could say that if that 

following vehicle had been going slower, the accident would have 

'been minimized or possibly been avoided, and we don't deny thato 

I donvt think any of our experts deny thato But there is the 

other realm of accidents about which no one knows how many of 

these accidents that are now near misses or were avoided would 

occur if there were a differential and if the forward vehicle, 

a truck or bus, were going not more than 50 miles an houro It 

is that uncertainty and that danger that makes our people believe 

that the solution is not a speed differential on an express h1gh-

waya There are so many, many other things that occuro In the 

first place, most of these accidents take place at night and they 

take place in all kinds of adverse weather and we know and our 

polioo know that the problem in these rear-end collisions with 

trucks perhaps bears out two things: one, faulty rear lighting or 

rear lighting which is not as high a standard as it should be, 

and, secondly, sleepy driverso There, we think, is where we should 

all focus our attentiono 
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CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Under the present law, you have the right 

to determine speed with a maximum of 60 mi le s an hour, is that 

right? 

GENERAL WANAMAKER: Yeso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: And you have a right to set any regulations 

that you want with the approval of who, the State Highway Com-

missioner or the Motor Vehicle Director? 

GENERAL WANAMAKERg No - the approval of the Authorityo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: The Authority alone? 

GENERAL WANAMAKER: Yes, sire 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Any questions, Mro Keegan? 

ASSEMBLYMAN REEG.AN: No o 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mro Flynn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Noo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: That's allo Thank you, Generalo 

Mro Robert Sheldon, the Assistant Motor Vehicle Directore 

ROBERT SHELDON: Gentlemen, I hope I haven't delayed the 

Committee in my appearance hereo I didn't know I had this assign-

ment until about twenty minutes agoo 

The Division in anticipation of a hearing before this Committee 

has made an effort to obtain opinions from other states that have 

enacted this type of legislation and we have come up with some 

information, not the kind that we desire from the standpoint of 

real accuracy or sure-fire statisticso However, 1f I may I should 

like to read in part from a letter which we received from the Council 

of State Governrrents just recently wherein we asked them to provide 

us with some informatJon with respect to states that do have speed 
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differential laws, with some opinion from them with respect to 

its successo The letter in part reads that 34 states presently have 

lower limits for trucks than for passenger carso However, all 

except four of these states have passenger car limits of over 50 
miles per hour; even though their truck limits are lower in most 

states, the legal maximum for trucks in these states is at 

least 50 miles an houro Now, of course, that immediately puts us 

in a position somewhat different from the maJority of the states 

inasmuch as our legal maximum for passenger vehicles on our state 

highways is 50 miles per houre 

On the negative side, of course, we have the uniform vehicle 

code, which does not specifically recommend a differential speed 

for various types of vehicleso They do go into recommendations 

concerning a lower speed during the nighttime hours as contrasted 

with during the dayo 

Our Bureau of Traffic Safety made another inquiry, which I 

believe is more detailedo They find that there are 35 states at 

the present time that have differential speed laws and this 

report in part reads: 

"On the basis of information that 35 of the 48 states had 

statutory regulations requiring a lower maximum speed for 

commercial vehicles than that permitted for passenger-type vehicles, 

an inquiry was addressed to eacho 

"Thirty-one of the thirty-five states respondedo We did 

not hear from Alabama 9 Illinois, Oklahoma, and Tennesseeo 

Generally these regulations limit trucks to a maximum speed that 

differs from 10 to 15 miles per hour from the speed allowed 

passenger-type vehicleso 
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"Taking a random example, the State of Kentucky has a 

daytime speed for passenger vehicles of 60 miles per hour and 

a 50 miles per hour nighttime speed - speed for trucks - 50 miles 

per hour with 40 miles per hour at night. This applies to all 
i 

trucks in non-urban areas. In urban areas it is 35 miles per 

hour at all times. Mro Paul Me Smith, the Director of the 

Kentucky State Police, states that these regulations have improved 

the safety and expedited the flow of traffic on the highways of 

that stateo 

"It is the general opinion of those whom we questioned 

that measures enacted to differentiate between trucks and auto-

mobiles probably resulted in a safer use of the roads~ In this 

connection Maryland reports a 1.2 per cent reduction in truck 

accidents since adopting the speed differential." 

'The 31 states which have adopted the differential, some having 

legislated it for more than 20 years, such as Mississippi, which 

has had it since 1938 and North Carolina since 1937, and Texas 

has always had it - most of these states that do have it have 

resisted any attempts to repeal ito They feel that it is a 

safety factor. Although they cannot give us statistics with respect 

to how many lives they saved or accidents that they have cut 

down, they feel that it is an important safety factor and they 

wish to continue it. 

We find that the states that do not have it, the 16 states~ 

are states that are from areas such as sparsely populated sections 

like Nevada, Utah, Colorado~ Idaho and Arizona. And then again 

on the other hand, the states that do not have it also include very 

populated states like New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, and 

- 25 -



Massachusetts. So it seems that the states that are inclined to 

enforce it are states that are in the in-between category, states 

like the Carolinas where the population is not as heavy as in 

this area and not as sparse as some of the more western or south-

western stateso 

The only state that has given us any specific comment with 

respect to its success has been the State of Maryland where they 

have indicated a reduction in accidents of one and two-tenths 

percento 

We in the Division feel that this legisation which you are 

considering now is not creating a mandatory differential speed, 

but is merely giving authority to the State Highway Commissioner 

and the local authorities with jurisdictions over their roads to 

enact differential speeds on certain roadwayso We can understand 

a distinction between the New Jersey Turnpike and Garden State 

Parkway as compared to two-lane highways in some of the more ., 

rural areas in the stateo We are equipped through the Bureau of 

Traffic Safety and the State Highway Department is also equipped 

to make scientific speed surveys for individual cases and make 

determinations in those cases with respect to whether or not a 

differential speed should applyo Frankly, I would be a little 

reluctant to testify in favor of the differential speed if it 

were a mandatory thing which would apply to any of the roadways 

of the stateo However, I do believe that, if given the authority, 

it can be exercised with good discretion by the Highway Depart-

ment, by the Freeholers or by the municipal governing bodieso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mr. Flynn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No questions. 
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CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mro Keegano 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: No questionso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ Why should this be left wi i.h the State 

Highway Department rather than the Motor Vehicle Department? 

MRo SHELDON~ Well, the State Highway Department is equipped 

and has been for the past several years to regulate its own 

highwayso Although by statute we have the authority to approve 
I 

their regulations 9 we find that personnel-wise they have the 

facilities to do it on their own roadways - they understand their 

own roadways better - and although we do consult with them from 

time to time with respect to the desirability of certain typ~ of 

installations, we find that they are competently qualified to know 

their own roads and make their own determinationso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ Would you have any knowledge or statistics 

that would indicate the relative position ot the total percentage 

of trucks in New Jersey as against the percentage of accidents 

that trucks are involved in? 

MRo SHELDON~ Well, we made a survey on that subject and 

I would be glad to provide the Committee with a copy of ito I 

think, to answer that question 9 we found that accident involvement 

- now this is 9 I believe eight months of 1959 - show that in the 

State of New Jersey 9lo3 per cent of the accident involvement 

involved passenger vehicles and 807 per cent involved trucks 9 

as compared with a truck registration of 10 per cent of all of 

the vehicles operating in the stateo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ Has anyone ever made an estimate of the 

relative mileage driven by trucks as against the passenger cars? 

I know it is very hard to doo In other words 9 what I am driving 
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at, it indicates that the trucks are not involved in many more 

accidents percentagewise than are passenger carso 

MRo SHELDON: I don't know if we have any specific studies on 

thato The Motor Vehicle Fuel people may have some way of 

determining that, although it wouldn't be a part of our own 

statistical compilations. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: MaJor Forkin in testifying before you 

came in, I believe, indicated that he would favor a speed differential, 

and he named specifically four highways, on Route 130, Route 1, 

Route 22 and Route 46,o Would you have any comments along those 

lines? 

MRo SHELDON~ Well, the ones that he mentioned, I would be 

inclined to concur with him ono They are highways that are 
\ 

problem highways for us at the present timeo I think he is 

probably more adequately qualified to know, having patrold~d 

those roadso But out inspectors would certainly concur in that 

tooa Those roads are certainly serious problems for everybodyo 
) 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Would you think that this should go 

behind state highways and be applicable on county and municipal 

roads? 

MRo SHELDON: I believe it should be applicable to county and 
( 

municipal roadso I don't know that we would get as much activity 

with this type of speed zoning on county and municipal roads 

because they are not zoned, most of them, for 50 miles per hour 

nowo Most of them are zoned for lesser speeds, except in the 

very rural areaso But I think that it should be just as applicable 

there where the situation warrantso 
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CHAIRMAN CRAB!EL: Would you think this has any merit on 

two-lane roads or must it only be used on four-lane roads? 

MRe SHELDON: No. I believe that it could be considered on 

two-lane roads as well as on four-lane roads. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: What would your opinion be as to increase 

in accidents because of a _passenger car passing a lower-rated truck 

on a two-lane road? 

MRo SHELDON: Well, I don't think that this bill is the panacea 

for this type of accident. We are talking about truck lighting. 

I think that by an improvement in our truck lighting law, we can 

eliminate that sort of accidento This sort of legislation is not 

going to keep drivers awake and I think most of these accidents 

where passenger vehicles are running into the rear end of 

commercial vehicles are caused by people slumbering at the wheelo 

I think perhaps many of these accidents might occur anyhow, 

whether or not there is a speed differential law where passenger 

vehicles are going to creep up on commercial vehicles and run 

into themo I think that other areas deserve some exploration too, 

such as truck lightingo But I don't knowo I see statistics 

from the Turnpike Authority where they show that these passenger 

vehicles are running into commercial vehicles. The statistics 

are thereo I don't know that it is because these trucks are 

going slower than they should go. I would assume that these 

trucks are probably traveling at the maximum limit when they are 

run into from the rear. I don't think that that is the real 

problem on a differential law. The inquiries that we have made 

of other states- none of them make any point of that at alle 

They are all satisfied with the lawo None of them say that they 
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have had an increase 1n rear-end acc1dentso I think perhaps 

that is a conclusion that we might draw without a real study of it. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Do you have any comments on A-235, which is 

the tachometer bill? 

MRo SHELDON: I have none at the present time. This legislat1on 

has been apparently the subject of discussion for a number of 

yearso Whether or not 1t 1s practical, is a real problem from an 

enforcement point of viewo I don 7 t know of any ~tates that 

are using ito The expense of enforcement of this type of legis-

lation, 1t would seem, would be very higho I don't think there 

is any question that if these vehicles were required to use 

tachometers and if we had the facilities and personnel to inspect 

them from time to time, they may serve some useful purposeo But 

without real uniformity throughout the otrrer states in the require-

ment of this type of legislation, I doubt that 1t would have 

very much meaning for us in New Jersey - together with the expense 

involved and the enforcement involvede I would take a dim view 

toward it now. This isn't an authoritative opinion on it; it 

1s more or less one off the cuff that I have hado We haven?t 

considered these bills too seriously because of that. I haven 9 t 

heard anything in its favor. I am sure there is good argument 

in its favoro But from the standpoint of the state 9 I think it 

is going to be an expensive thingo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Concerning A-ISL~, the bill to have 

special licenses for truck drivers, do you have any viewpoint 

on that? 

MRo SHELDON: Well, I think that it is goodo I think that 

special licensing for truck drivers would serve a very useful purposeo 
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I donYt see why we should distinguish between trucks and buses 

the operators, of which are now required to get special licenses. 

Again, I can only say this, that without the funds and the 

people to conduct this type of examination, we are not in a 

~osition right now to do anything about ite We would desire ito 

We think it is goodo However, we are not equipped at the present 

time with our inspector force personnel to do it. So more money 

would be required againo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Do any other states have special licenses 

for trucks? 

MR .. SHELDON: Offhand, I am not prepared to say .. 

CHAIRJ.VIAN CRABIEL: Are you prepared to comment on this: 

What effect would that have on out-of-state trucks in New 

Jersey if this bill were passed? 

MR. SHELDON: The special licensing? 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Yes. In other words, an out-of-state 

truck driver could still drive in ---

MR .. SHELDON: Under our statutes, we would extend reciprocity 

to them, regardless of whether or not they had an examination 

in their home state, so long as they had a valid license from 

their home state. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: What are your thoughts concerning out-of-

state drivers in truck accidents? 

MR. SHELDON: Well, my thoughts are these: I think that no 

matter what we do in New Jersey 9 we are going to be faced with 

a tremendous problem because of the vehicles coming into our 

state from foreign stateso Even though we exert very high 

standards in our statutes here, we can't expect any real 
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accomplishments until we can get other states to adopt the same 

high standardso The Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators 

has indicated~ willingness to provide work shops on this subjecto 

I believe if we can get real cooperation from the surrounding 

states in enacting legislation of a high standard, that it will 

be helpful to uso But the Middlesex County accident I think was 

a good illustration - a vehicle that was regi~tered in New York 

State which was not required to be inspected - a driver who was 

licensed in another stateo Certainly none of our regulations or 

statutes could have controlled this vehicle nor could they have 

controlled the operator of this vehiclec 

Without good interstate cooperation, we are not going to 

get too faro And that is why we are trying to encourage this 

sort of interstate reciprocity relationshlp on many of our lawsc 

Without that, we are going to have a difficult time overcoming 

any of these problemso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: How can we get at better reciprocity? 

MRo SHELDON: Well, we can continue our efforts of meeting 

with other states through joint conferences or through the 

Ao Ao Ma V .. A .. to establish agreements which are al lowed under the 

statutory authority of the respective stateso But the big problem 

is that states such as New York and Delaware and Maryland, all 

are operating under laws which are different from our lawso Their 

motor vehicle administrators do not have the authority in all 

cases to propound regulations and enter into recipricity agree-

mentsa So there is little that we can do individually, except 

through Joining with other states, attempting to have legislation 

influenced in those states which will give their commissioners 
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of motor vehicles authority to act, in these cases where they 

cannot now acto 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Do you think there is merit to the idea 

of a national license 9 issued by a federal agency rather than 

a state agency? 

MRo SHELDON: Well, I think there is merit to a national 

program of driver records in order that we may obtain driver 

records of operators of vehicles in other stateso I don't think 

that it is fully necessary if each state will exercise its own 

responsibility in this respecto But I question the practicality 

of any national commissioner of motor vehicles or any other 

agency which would have the authority to license vehicles in all 

states or license drivers in all stateso I don't believe it 

is too workable and I don't think that we should dwell to much on 

that particular subject because I think that it is a little wish-

ful thinking at this stageo I think we can deal with more of 

our specific problemso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: .Any other questions? (No responseo) 

Very well, Mro Sheldono 

Mro Wilson, I saw you come ino Mro Wilson, come over and 

join uso He is a member of the Committee from Union Countyo 

I will call on Former Senator John Toolan, representing the 

New Jersey Motor Truck Associationo 

JOHN Eo TOOLAN: Thank you~ Mro Chairmano For the record, 

my name ls John Eo Toolan and I appear here on behalf of the New 

Jersey Truck Associationo And on behalf of that Association~ I 

want to make the record clear at the outset by stating our general 

position with reference to this or any other legislation respecting 
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safety on the highwayo The New Jersey Motor Truck Association 

is in favor of greater safety on the highways and for all sound 

legislation that will prqmote or assure this endo 

Having said that 9 I suppose you might say that 1s like being 

against sin because the generalization doesn 9;t mean much until 

you get to the specificso Th1s group of bills has probably been 

activated by the recent unfortunate and horrible accident in 

Middlesex County that cost the lives of eleven peopleo I suppose, 

that projects the questiono Assume that all these bills were 

the law of the land on that horrible nighto Would they ~ave had 

any effect whatsoever upon that accident? I think anybody who knows 

anything about that accident would have to answer that none of 

these bills would have any effect upon it whatsoevero That 

accident was not caused by speeda That accident was not caused 

by any lack of brakeso You see 9 I represent the gentleman who 
I 

was driving the trucko Beyond that at the moment 9 I wouldn't 

regard it as wise or politic to goo While we know that the 

primary cause of that accident was the contact between two 

vehiclesj there was another factor involved in that accident that 

isn't touched by any of these billso All of these people burned 

to deatho And~ of course, it might be appropriate at some time 

for the legislature to think in terms of the prevention of that 

sort of a resulta That doesnvt necessarily involve speed or 

brakes or even human erroro You are dealing there w1th equipment 

and the construction and the location of gasoline tankso' 

However 9 let us direct ourselves to the specific pieces 

of legislation hereo First, with reference to Assembly Bill 

Number 235 9 the tachometer bill 9 that bill provides that each 
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truck shall be equipped with a tachometer, it says in the bill, 

but it has been suggested the correct name is tachograph .. Now 

I wonder what purpose or function that is to perform under the 
J 

provisions of Assembly 235 because under that bill"no information 

or record taken or reproduced from a tachometer shall be permitted 

as evidence that the vehicle was operated in violation of a lawful 

speed limit In a proceeding in any court or before the Division 

of Motor Vehiclesott According to the b1ll,"such information may 

be offered by or on behalf of the owner or operator of the vehicle 

on which the tachometer was installed .. " 

Now, if I were to take that bill literally, I would assume 

that it was intended and designed to afford an operator a defense 

against the charge of some police officer or state trooper that 
\ 

he was exceeding the speed limite And it seems to me that the 

bill as drawn is limited to that specific purposeo Well, 1f that 

is the purpose, I want to go on record here and now clearly and 

specifically as saying that the Motor Truck Association of New 

Jersey is opposed to the billo 

This bill would impose a very sub~tantial expense upon the 

commercial vehicles in this state with no commensurate return or 

reward. I understand that these tachometers are devices that can 

be tampered with very easily by any truck driver and be made to 

record something other than the fact. 

With reference to the large operators who are operating in 

interstate commerceo They are subject to regulation by the IoCoCo 

and they are under the duty and responsibility of keeping all of 

their equipment in order, in good working order, and if they donwt, 

it is a violationo So you would expose all of these operato~s to 
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charges of violations any time this tachometer was not operating 

and recording properly, and again, with no rewardo 

The only function or purpose of a tachometer would be to 

give the owner-operator information respecting stopovers, time 

that the driver took out, and if it is not tampered with, perhaps 

some general idea as to average ~peeds that might have been main-

tained during certain periods. But that informa,tion has not proven 

of sufficient value to most operators to cause them to put in this 

deviceo Now, if it were good business to put tachometers on 

trucks from the point of view of management or owne~ship, you 

wouldn 1 t need legislationo They would do it themselveso Now if 

it is not good business to put these tachometers on these trucks, 
I 

then you have to say to yourself: What purpose or function is 

this tachometer to serve? What public good does it serve? There 

is nothing suggested in the blllo There it nothing that has been 

suggested in any presentation here todayo The only thing this 

bill will accomplish will be to subject the substantial operators 

to a very high installation cost, to a very high maintenance cost, 

to the hazard and risk of being brought up before the IoCoCa 

for violation in the sense that its equipment is not maintained in 

good order and so forth, with no commensurate benefit either to 

the operator or to the public and as far as we are concerned 

there is no present Justification for the passage of this bill, 

and we oppose ito 

Now with reference to Assembly Number 184, with reference to 

special license to operate gross weight vehicles and loads in 

excess of 4,000 pounds, number one~ if there is ever to be this 

type of legislation, the weight of the vehicle should be increased 
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because this weight of 4,000 pounds is too low~ Now, the New Jersey 

Motor Truck Association is in favor of anything that will give 

them better driverso The people who have the greatest interest in 

truck safety are the owners because they are involved with the 

lives of their employees and their own property, insurance rates 

and increased costs that result from accidentso 

If some method could be devised to have special licensing 

that would make sure that no one ever got aboard one of these 

trucks, particularly the large tractor-trailer vehicles, who was 

not qualified, it would be in the interest of the owners and 

operators and they would be for ito But don't pass legislatlon 

of this kind unless you really mean it; by that I mean this, 

unless you follow up the legislation with a substantial appropri-

ation so that the legislation will be meaningfulo Then you have 

to ask yourself the question: Well, is the legislation now in 

effect with reference to bus drivers appropriate, suitable and• 

adequate with reference to the operation of the vehicles that you 

are trying to regulate because this is pr1marily aimed, I assume, 

at the operators of these larger and heavier-weight vehicles? 

Unless a set of standards were set up that must be met, both 

with reference to physical fitness, mental capacity, nervous re-

action, alertness and other standards so that you would make sure 

the examination when a driver got a certificate of fitness really 

meant something, there is no point in passing legislation because 

if you give the people of the state anything less than that, 

you are merely going to add an expense to the operation of 

the state without a commensurate benefit to the people of the 

state because ultimately they are the 
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ones who are going to pay this bill, whether you put the initial 

tax upon the licensee or upon the truck driver or the truck owner 

or where you put it. 

This is the category or thing that the New Jersey Motor Truck 

Association says "Yes, we are in favor of it if you do it right, 

but no half way measureso" And this bill as drawn 51 we respectfully 

submit 9 will not accomplish what the New Jersey Motor Truck 

Association would like to see' accomplisheda Give us a good bill 

and the New Jersey Motor Truck Association will be for ito In 

other words, if you can give us better truck drivers, the New Jersey 

Motor Truck Association wants ita 

Now coming to Assembly Number 442 - that is the bill which as 

present~y drawn provides for a speed differential - now this bill 

as drawn is an amendment of Section 39:4-980 First with reference 

to the specific provisions of this bill, we want to comment upon 

the specific provisions because we think this bill as drawn is 

not adequate to the needso This bill, of course, goes back to 

39:4-98 and recites that the speed limits are 25 miles an hour 

when passing through a school zone and so, forth, 25 miles an hour 

in business or residence districts, and 50 miles an hour in all 

other locationso And then the bill provides that "Whenever it 

shall be determined upon the basis of an engineering and traffic 

investigation that any speed hereinbefore set forth is greater or 

less than is reasonable or safe under the conditions found to 

exist at any intersection or other place or upon any part of 

a highwayi~ 1~" Now, who makes the determination? You might 

guess about it later on in the bill that in one instance it might 

be made by the State Highway Department and the other instance by 
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the municipal body or the county bodyo But the bill ought to 

clarify who it is that makes the determinationo But in any event, 

assuming that such a determination is made, it then goes on: and 

this seems to be a clause left more or less out in space as I 

read the bill - n iHH~ or that a differential rate of speed of 10 

miles per hour less than a maximum rate of speed of 50 miles 

per hour or greater for commercial vehicles exceeding 10,000 

pounds gross weight would create saf~r driving conditions for 

all veh1cles using all or any part of a highway," and so fortho 

Now with reference to that particular phrase, that makes 

a mandatory differential of 10 miles per hour and then it goes 

on 99 or greater for commercial vehicles exceeding 10,000 poundson 

Presumably you could have a differential of 10 miles per hour on 

all commercial vehicles in 50-mile areas and a differential of 

something in excess of ten miles per hour for all vehicles having 

a gross weight of 10,000 poundso There is no limitation upon 

how much greater a , Now, if you are 9) ing to give that sort of 

power as this bill does to municipalities and counties - of 

course, while it is true that whatever they do must be subject to 

the approval of the Director of, I believe it is the Motor Vehicle 

Department - still you leave open a mileage differential that could 

under the hysteria of some accident such as recently occurred on 

Highway One there near New Brunswick to rather absurd results and 

I donYt think it ought to be left open that wayo 

Now, as far as the Motor Truck Association is concerned 9 

they are opposed to so-called mandatory speed differentialsa They 

are in favor, and have been in favor and have put themselves on 

record as being in favor of speed differentials where special 
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study and special circumstances indicate that a speed differential 

will contribute to safety to the operators of the vehicles and to 
\ 

the operators and all persons using vehicles upon the public 

highways o 

Now, it has been stated here - and on behalf of the Motor 

Truck Association we are in accord with the idea - that you 

cannot pass generalized legislation on this subject of speed and 

speed differjentiaJs and embrace the Turnpike Authority, the 

Parkway and all state highways and county and local roads of the 

state because that type of legislation just will not work auto 

There are so many differing facts and factors and circumstances 

and incidents that generalized legislation would be a hindrance 

perhaps rather than an aid to the ultimate safety if you attempt 

themo We think you have to treat the so-called express highways 

like the Turnpike Autho~ity in one category and you have to 

treat the state highways and the county an:l municipal highways 

in another category and it is not anything, this whole subject 

matter of speed differential, that you can come to fast conclusions 

abouto It is a very easy thing, as I say, under the emotional 

impact of this sort of an accident to try to do something in a 

hurry and to adopt some panacea or universal cure-all to 

still the public clamor for the elimination of all fatal accidentso 

Legislation adopted under those conditions is usually bad legis-

lationo 

For instance~ you take a two-lane highway and if you just 

arbitrarily permit some municipality through which it operates 

to say that "You shall not go through here over 15 miles an hour," 
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you are not Just affecting commercial vehicles. For all practical 

purposes, you put a 15 mile speed through that area because if 

a commercial vehicle can't go any faster than that - it is a two-

lane highway and you wouldn't regulate the speed at all unless 

it is fairly heavily traveled - that means you won't be able to 

get by any vehicle because there will be traffic coming in 

the other direction and you fix a speed limit for all vehicleso 

There are sections in this state - and I have an illustration 

here in a communication I just got from one of the members of 

the Association where in a certain section of the state within 

a radius of a relatively few miles, you run through a series of 

changes 1n speed in different municipalities where they are close 

to each other - 45, 25, 20, and 35 miles an houro Now, I think you 

must recognize that most of these speed signs aren 7 t that plain 

and that obvious and that conspicuous so that the average citizen 

will have them brought to his attentiono It is very, very easy 

to get caught with a violation when you have no intention to 

be a violator because if you are going through a 40-mile zone 

and then don't happen to see the speed change sign, you are a 

violator 9 and with the current threat of the loss of your license 

if you are going in excess of a speed limit by 10 miles, it is a 

very, very great risko 

I think all these things the members of this Committee know 

and certainly the people on the highway recognize these things& 

I think you have to have a very, very practical and sensible 

approach to this whole problemo You are never going to eliminate 

all accideritso We can pass sensible legislation that will have a 
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tenqency to minimize them and that is about the best you can do be-

cause you are not going to eliminate them unless you can pass 

legislation that is going to change human nature arrl up to now 

nobody has been smart enough to work that one cute 

Just one other thing, as far as the New Jersey Motor Truck 

Association is concerned 9 they are in favor of some agency in 

the state reporting to the owners or to the New Jersey Motor Truck 

Association all violations involving trucks so that the owner-

operator will be informed and be advised of tickets that are given 

to their employeeso It will aid them in better supervision, 

in 'better policing and better controlo Similarly,while there are 

statistics published annually in this state respecting the number 

of arrests and violations by out-of-state operators, there is 

never any identification of who those out-of-state operators are, 
-

and if some agency in the state would notify the New Jersey Motor 

Truck Association or notify the employers 9 the out-of-state employers, 

it would be a s,imilar1great s)ervice to them i'.m. this whole subject 

matter of supervision and regulation and policingo It would be 
I 

an aid perhaps in cutting down and minimizing the accident rateo 

This bill - the general purpose of Bill A-442 which is sought 

to be accomplished - is favored by the New Jersey Motor Truck 

Association, not as a mandatory process, but we think that if 

there is to be legislation of this sort, it ought to provide 

that there can be a differential of not in excess of ten miles 

an hour; and that whether or not the differential should be 

applied in any particular location or circumstance should be deter-

mined by some designated agency after careful investigation and 

study to the end that the differential will be used at locations 
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upon the highways where it will contribute to safety and not 

merely be the means of causing additional traffic congestion 

and perhaps be a contributing factor to a higher accident rateo 

Is our position clear? 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Senator Toolan, you refer to the tragic 

accident on Route One in Middlesex County, and, of course, I am 

very familiar with that, happening to live very close to thereo 

I just want to point out for the record that these three bills 

were introduced in the Legislature, two of them on January 19th, 

and A-442 on February 9th, and that the Committee had been giving 

consideration to these bills during the year. In fact, Assembly 

442 had been introduced last year and had been released by the 

Committee and had been passed by the Assembly, but had not moved 

forward in the Senateo It is true that when the tragic accident 

happened, there was a public clamor continued for some regulation 

to stop things such as thiso And it was the purpose of the Com-

mittee to delay holding this hearing until that accident got a 

little bit more in perspective so that it could be considered in 

the over all picture and that is one of the reasons for the 

length of time elapsing before the holding of this hearingo 

I believe that what will come out of this hearing will be a recom-

mendation to the new Legislature or the new Highway Committee to 
I 

consider action on these matters because it is too late in the 

session for us to do anythingo But I wanted to get that clear to 

the people, that we are trying to consider this in the light of 

the latest record and also in the light of bills that have been 

in or thoughts that have been submitted to uso 

Mr., Keegan .. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN~ Senator, I am confused on this point 

and I would appreciate it if you could clear it up for meo If 
\ 

I understand your statement correctly, the Association is in 

favor of a differential if it is limited to a differential of 

10 mi 1 e s an hour o I s that correct? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Not in excess ofo 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: not in excess of 10 miles an<hour 

and if there is a specific agency which would be empowered to 

make the recommendations where the differential would be applied 

in the stateo It is my understanding from reading the bill 

that that is the provision~ of the acto Now, is your criticism 

directed to the fact that the bill as written from l1ne 11 forward 

to line 27 is too general? 

SENATOR TOOLAN~ I think that the bill from line 11 forward 

could be redrafted and made much clearero I think the English 

construction is not too goodo For instance, with reference to 

speeds, this says "{HHr or that a di ffe rent i a 1 rate of speed of 

10 miles per houro" There ls no flexibility in thereo You have 

got to make it 10 miles an houro Now there might be locations in 

the state where wisdom might dictate that you might have a 

differential ~f 5 miles per hour or 7 or 8 miles per hour, but 

not necessarily 10 miles per houro This bill gives no latitude 

at all in that respecto This bill provides that you can make 

a differential of 10 miles per hour and in situations and with 

reference to vehicles in excess of 10,000 pounds; a greater dif-

ferentialo Well 9 now, how are you going to announce that on 

your signs? Are you going to put a sign up «1f you truck ls 

over 10,000 pounds, your differential is 15 miles an hour"? 
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In other words, our point on that is this: We are in favor 

of differentials at proper locations where sincere honest study 

and good Judgment dictate that there should be a differential 9 

but we think once you delegate the authority to make a differential 

to some agency, either the Highway Department or the Motor Vehicle 

Department, you also must have confidence enough in that agency 

to ~ermit them to fix the differential within certain limits 

that will be prescribed by the Legislature, which we say should 

not exceed 10 mileso Do I clarify our position? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: Yeso Thank you, siro 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Senator, you are familiar with the 

accident that you mentioned in Middlesex, the bus and truck? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Yeso 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Could you tell me what the insurance 

coverage was on the truck? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I can't tell you what it was, but the driver 

of that truck was the employee of the largest corporation of its 

kind, I believe, in the United States of America and entirely 

aside from the insurance, if they didn't have any insurance at 

all, the corporation has more than abundant means to take care 

and pay any claims that might arise out of this accidento 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is it possible, Senator, to your know-

ledge that a smaller concern, a private owner, owner-operator, 

would 1 be allowe~ to operate the same type of truck with say 

coverage of five and ten thousand dollars? 

SENATOR TOOLAN~ I don't quite get the point of your questiona 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: A private individual, owning a large 

tractor-trailer, driving it himself, would be an owner-operatoro 
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Would it be possible for him under the laws of the State of 

New Jersey to operate that truck with only coverage of five and 

ten thousand dollars? Now, he would not have the means, the 

personal means 9 to make good if anything went wrongo 

SENATOR TOOLAN: That's correcto In other words, 1s this 

the point of your question: Should the operators of these 

vehicles be required to carry adequate insurance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN~ Well, naturally they should be required 

to carry adequate insuranceo What I was trying to get to is this: 

Is it possible now for them to operate with only a coverage of 

five and ten thousand? 

SENATOR TOOLAN~ I believe that is the present law, yeso 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: And would you consider that adequate? 

SENATOR TOOLAN~ Would 17 Noo As a matter of factj I 

donvt think five and ten is adequate on any vehicle that is 

operated on the highways of the State of New Jersey todayo All you 

have to do on that is go back and find the days when we thought 

five and ten was adequate and see what the purchasing power is 

today and that ends that questiono 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Could you say offhand what the Truck 

Owners Association would consider a fair coverage or wouldnit 

they want to go into that or would you? 
I 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I was going to say in all frankness to you 

I canwt answer the question because I have never heard ~he subject 

matter discussedo I don 7 t know whether they have any policy or 

have ever considered what is adequateo 'I think this, that any 

man in any business who has any assets always w~nts to carry 

sufficient insurance to cover any reasonably anticipatable 
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accident or claim so that the claim will be paid out of his 

insurance coverage rather than out of his personal assets or the 

assets of the corporation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Thank youo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mr6 Keegano 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: Senator, I direct your attention to 

A-2350 If I understood you correctly, it is the experience of the 

operators that tachometers don't function properly for their 

business purposes. Not to put you on the spot in any sense, 

but are you aware of the experience from the viewpoint of the 

employee with respect to the devices? Are they met favorably by 

the men or is it the situation where man hasn't created a device 

yet that the operator can't tamper with? Is the tampering done 

by the operator himself, meaning the driver? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: By the driverso 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: By the driver, I meant - the motor 

vehicle driveL 

SENATOR TOO LAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: Do you know what is the reaction to 

the tachometer by the driver? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: You know I had anticipated there would be 

some union representatives down here today on behalf of these 

drivers, but I see noneo 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: The reason I asked, Senator, I looked 

at the list of those who have signified that they are going to 

speak and 1 don't see any and I wanted to have the reaction, if 

you had it, due to your experience in the field& 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I wouldnVt want to comment on thate I donVt 
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knowa But if I were asked to speculate about it, I would assume 

that the drivers generally would be against these tachometers 

because they might think maybe the boss might use it to check upon 

theme From the point of view of the operators, as I understand 

it, that is the only function it can possibly servea Some of 

the operators have tried it and have found that it takes so 

much time and effort and cost to police the tachometers, to 

keep them in operating order and to try to beat the ingenuity of 

the drivers that they lose their usefulness for even that purposeo 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: It is not good businesso 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Noo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: What is the attitude of the Motor Truck 

Association concerning reciprocity between the states? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I think the Motor Truck Association, 

generally speaking, and I am picking this right out of the air -

over here 'l get the nod that they are in favor of it o 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: What would be the attitude of the Motor 

Truck Association concerning mandatory requirement of logs for 

drivers? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I am informed that under the IoCoCQ they 

now have to keep mandatory logso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: That is righta But for local intrastate 

trucking, it is not required as of this timeo 

SENATOR TOOLAN: That's correcto I am informed that there 

was such legislation on the books of this state and the legislation 

was repealed about three years agoo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I realize that, but there has been considerable 
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discussion since some of these major accidents on the basis that 

possibly part of these accidents are caused by a lack of sleep 

of drivers and it has come out in both the testimony of General 

Wanamaker and also Mr. Sheldon, I believe, that a portion of these 

accidents are caused by people falling asleepo Tre purpose of my 

question is to determine, although that has been repealed, whether 

there is some merit to consideration of logs on trips. 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Will you bear with me? 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Yes, siro 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Wait until I get briefed. (Senator Toolan 

confers with some members of the N.J. Motor Truck Association.) 

I think I have at least what appears to be a sensible and 

logical answero First, with reference to all operators who have 

I.C.C. permits, any vehicle that operates within the radius of 

50 miles from its home base is not required to keep a log. 

Any vehicle that goes beyond 50 miles must keep a log. So it 

seems to me that tra I.C.C. regulations cover the situation 

adequately with reference to the interstate operator. 

Now when you come to the operator who is not under I.C.C. 

regulations, namely, who operates entirely within the State of 

New Jersey, an intrastate operator, it seems to me the law is 

not necessary because New Jersey is such a small state that if 

he doesn't go outside the perimeter of the State of New Jersey, 

the chances are he won't be running nights and days as maybe some 

of the interstate operators doo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I don't want it developed into the merits 

of the North Brunswick accidentj but I was informed that the 

driver of that truck by the nature of the business he was in didn't 
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have to keep a log and it was an interstate vehicle and also the 

later accident at Route One and Milltown Road was a truck coming 

from the south with produce of some sort and I was informed there 

that they didnVt have to keep a logo Now can you develop with me 

under IoCoCo who are exempt from keeping logs? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: May I say to you that the driver of the 

truck involved in the New Brunswick accident had to keep a logo 

He was an IoCoCo operator and he was under the absolute duty to 

keep a log, both he and the owner of the,trucko 

I can say also for your information - this is just by way of 

volunteering - that I have taken that man's deposition and he 

testified in that deposition that he had O hours of goodJ solid 

sleep prior to going on that particular trip, that he was at home 

all day and got the call sometime in the evening/to go on that 

trip, and that trip was to be from his home base in Long Island 

City to Philadelphiao 

CHAIRlVI.A.N CRABIEL: Do your colleagues know if there are any 

exemptions to the loCoCo rule or are all trucks in interstate 

commerce required to keep a log? 
' MRo DAMEO~ There are no exemptions under the safety regul-

ations whatsoevero There are commodity exemptions where they 

donVt need !oCoCo authority to move produce, but they must comply 

with the safety regulations of the Interstate Commerce Commissiono 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Well, all trucks traveling through New 

Jersey, no matter what they are hauling must keep a log if they 

are an interstate vehicle7 

MRo DAMEO~ That 1 s correcto 

- 49 -



ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: On this log 9 would that be filled out 

during the course of the trip or upon the completion? 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I am going to ask Mr. Dameo who is an 

operator and a former President of the No Jo Motor Truck Assoc-

iation to answer that questiono 

MRo DAMEO: At the starting-out point of the trip, they 

fill in their log and all the pertinent information as to where 

the origin point is and where the final destination will beo 

They must insert at every state crossing, the time at which 

they made the state crossing and where it was made and the log 

shall not lapse over a period of any more than four hours between 

entrances and it is strictly a graph so that even a person who 

could not write can fill the log ino 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: One more question: Some of these large 

trucks have more than one drivero They carry a spare driver for 

re 1 ieving? 

MR. DAMEO~ That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Could you explain a little bit just how 

that would operate? 

MRo DAMEO: Well 9 that is known as a sleeper-cab operation. 

They have a sleeping compartment inside of the cab where a man 

can partially undress and lie down and go to sleep in a comfort-

able bed or bunko He acts as a relief driver. When the driver 

at the wheel puts in his eight hours or four hours 9 they keep 

swinging off and they put in the log the time spent in the 

sleeping berth~ time driving 9 time out for meals, time off duty, 

etc. That is how that works. That is on a straight-through 

operation where they donvt relay. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN~ Is that a requirement of the IoC.Co? 

MRo DAMEO: No, that is not a requiremento That is not 

mandatoryo You mean the two-man operation? No, that is not 

mandatoryo That is at the operator's discretion whether he wants 

to run a two-man operation or a one-man operationo In a long-

distance t~o-man operation, they have the two methods: the 

sleeper cab and the relay station where a driver goes from 

A to B within an eight-hour period and he leaves the truck there 

and another driver takes it over and he drives it for an eight-

hour period .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEG.AN: Are there any statistics to show what 

the results of this two-man operation would be? 

a safer operation? 

Has ~t 
I 

I 

I 

MRo D.AMEO~ 

statistics on ito 

donl Vt I couldn't qualify that because I 1 
I 

I 

been 

have the 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: It is the opinion of the New iersey Motor 

Truck Association then that the keeping o~ a log has no useful --

MRo D.AMEO: -- no useful purpose here in the Sta11e of New 

Jersey because of the size of the stateo 

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Senator, may I ask you this question: 
I 

If you got this differential, if the bill stated 10 miles, does 
I 

the New'Jersey Motor Truck Association have any idea tjf the expense 

involved to the operator? 
I 

I Naturally, the time betwee~ points 

would be greater at a lesser s~eedo 
I 

SENATOR TOOLAN: I That question has been very thoroughly 

considered and discussed by the New Jersey Truck Asso~iation and 
I 

the difference in time because of the speed differential is not a 
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factor with them of any importance whatsoever. In other words, 

there ls no disposition on the part of the New Jersey Motor 

Truck Association to say merely because a differential may cost 

us a little bit more money that we are against Ito They figure 

if it is in the interest of safe operation, the returns and the 

rewards and the compensation to them in that respect far outweigh 

any extra cost incident to a little extra time in making deliverieso 

CHAIRMAN CRA.BIEL: Senator, on A-442 on line 16 that you 

talked about, the word "greater~ -as I read that before you 

talked, I read that that "greater" referred to the 50 miles per 

hour or where you have a higher speed limit on the Turnpike, which 

would be 60 miles per hour, and that it had nothing whatsoever to 

do with the differential and that it applied to all trucks 

exceeding 10,000 pounds and the "greater" only modified the 

50 miles. I will yield to you though as an attorney of long 

experience., 

SENATOR TOOLAN: As a matter of grammatical construction, 

you may be righto But the mere fact that I can read it my way is 

an indication that it is poor draftsmanshipo And when I say 

"poor draftsmanship, tt> I don't mean to reflect upon anybody a I 

mean to say that the draftsmanship of this kind of legislation 

ought to be so clear that it should not be possible for anybody 

to have anything but the one constructione 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Any further questions? (No response.) 

Very wello Thank you, Senator Toolano 

SENATOR TOOLAN: And thank you, gentlemen, for your time also 

and I want to put the Motor Truck Association of New Jersey on 
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record here and now as being willing and anxious to work with 

this committee, to work with the Attorney General's Office and 

the Motor Vehicle Department and the State Highway Department or 

any other agency on legislation and developing ideas and methods 
1 

and techniques of making the highways safer because, as I say 9 

there is no one who has a greater interest than they doo I 

always remember being in an investigation one time following a 
I 

great train wreck and the representative of the Trainmen's Association 

in testifying made a point that I never forgoto He s~id "Remember, 

the one who dies first in a train wreck is the enginee'ro" 

Similarlyj) the people who die first in these truck acc!idents 
I are usually the truck driverso Now that is the impact upon the 

drivero In so far as the owner of that vehicle is concerned, 

the impact of a bad accident can affect him adversely in many, 
I 

\ 

many ways over a long perioa of time and, therefore, he has an 

interest second only to the driver of the truck in eliminating 

the accidenL 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Thank you, siro 

Mr. Kenneth Schultze, Legislative Chairman, New Jersey 

Conference of AoAoAo Automobile Clubso 

MR. Fo KENNETH SCHULTZE~ Mro Chairman and gentlemen, sitting 

back there in that back row, I couldn't help but notice that the 

Senate still has a 48-star flag hanging up thereo Maybe we could 

send a special message to the Senate President 

GEORGE HARKINS: The new flag - pardon me - is going to be 

ordered in Julyo 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Thank you 9 Mro Presidento (Laughtero) 

MRo HARKINS~ You Just heard a gentleman talk here a minute 
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ago who was one of the finest senators in the Legislature we 

ever had and many years I served with himo He is a wonderful 

fell0Wo f 

SENATOR TOOLAN: Thank you, Georgeo I think the same of 

you too, I' 11 tell youo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mro Schultze, you may proceed. 

MRo SCHULTZE: Thank you, Mro Chairmano I couldn 1 t help 

but think as I sat back here listening to these gentlemen ahead 

of me, I guess the best thing for me to do driving home to 

Morris County tonight is leave my car where it is and go down 

and get a railroad train, providing I was sure there would be one 

runningo 

And also, referring to Mro Sheldon's remarks - and correct 

me please, Mro Sheldon if I am wrong - I took from his remarks 

that truck traffic from surrounding states cannot be controlled 

as to the equipment and certain types of safety operations in 

this state as can our own truckso Is that correct, sir? Then 

as a citizen and not as a representative of my group today - as 

a citizen, Mro Chairman, I call upon you gentlemen to do something 

about that as fast as possibleo 

Now I feel that my own personal life has led me to a point 

that is advantageous to me todayo I started out in 1921 giving 

driving lessons to truck drivers and passenger car owners and 

for four years that is the way l made my bread and buttero I 

have driven small trucks and medium sized trucks and today twice 

a month I still move throughout the state a 49-foot combination 

truck and trailer that is no toyo So I think that I have a little 

experience that some of the younger folks around here and maybe 
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some of the older ones would like to have had~ 

In June of 1959 it was my pleasure to travel through 16 

states 9 14 of which have differential speed laws for truckso 

these states had well posted, anywhere from 5 to 15 miles per 

And 

hour less speed on certain highways for trucks over 10,000 poundso 

I believe that those well-planned highways were in a great sense 

responsible for the clean manner in which I personally noted 

truck operation in those stateso I have before me a list of 33 
states having daytime regulation plus 4 with nighttime regulation 

only and at the termination of my little presentation here, I 

shall hand you gentlemen the sheet for whatever use it may be to 

youo 

Now our New Jersey Motor Vehicle law states that a passenger 

car traveling at 20 miles per hour must be able'to stop in 30 
feet and this same law says that a huge truck traveling at 20 

miles per hour must also be able to stop in 30 feeto LetVs 

increase the passenger car speed to 50 or 60 miles per hour with 

a truck traveling at the same speed behind the passenger car. 

Now the passenger car driver sees a person or an animal 

start across the road and makes a fast stop to avoid an accident. 

If the truck brakes are not operating at maximum efficiency and if 

the truck driver has no other place to go 9 he will end up inside 
I 

the trunk of your car 9 and you end up in a hospital or on a slab. 

We think that the State of New Jersey should have a lower 

speed limit for trucks above 10,000 pounds gross weighto We 

are not alone in our thoughts on this mattero The Safety 

Engineering Department of the American Automobile Association in 

Washingtoni Do C. has been studying this problem for years and 

- 55 -



, 

not Just since this serious truck acc1dent 1n Middlesex County 

a few weeks agoo On the basis of facts developed by these 

studies, the policy committee of the AAA has recommended for 

several years that differential in speed between trucks and 

passenger cars be established as part of a natl onal programo 

And here we 1 mention again, 33 states have already adopted this 

programo 

Due to the highway congestion which exists on the New Jersey 
\ 

highways, there should be some consideration given first of all to 

these two factors: 

First, a conce~trated effort by state officials to recommend 

and demand from the manufacturers of trucks a more efficient 

braking systemo 

Second, a concentrated effort by enforcement agencies and 

trucking companies to control the excessive speed that trucks 

maintain and to provide additional education of the drivers& 

Along with serious consideration given to the above items, on 

some selected highways speed zoning could be administerede On 

highly congested dual highways where there are two lanes of 

traffic moving continuously it would be practical for trucks to 

maintain a five mile per hour rate of speed less than the maximum 

allowed for passenger carso This would eliminate the endangerment 

caused when trucks are continually battling with the passenger 

cars to gain superiority of the highwaysa This should only be 

considered, however, where truck traffic is heavy and where 

past results prove that accidents have resulted due to this factoro 

Speed zoning should be determined on the basis of careful 

engineering studies 9 field checks and conferences with enforcement 
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officialso 

On single lane highways and expressways the rate of speed 

for both passenger and trucks could be the sameo Further 

consideration should be given to a reduced speed for trucks for 

night driving on all highwayso 

Many states enforce a lower speed limit at night than for 

daytime, mainly on the fact that the driver cannot see as well at 

night even with today's modern headlightso And may I say that in 

the past five years~ it has been my privilege to have tested 

in our safety trailer the eyes of marty hundreds of people, and 

the physical ability of a driver 9 s eyes to return to his normal 

night sight after glaring headlights have struck him in the face 

is something that will scare every one of youo If you are over 

age 50, it doesnet pay to take the testo I knowo I have cut 

my speed down at night to 30 miles an hour and the rest of us 

could well do the same thing. 

We feel that such a speed differential is a most important 

safety factor in this state because of the many hundreds of trucks 

using New Jersey highways daily in the pursuit of tradeo The 

proof that the stopping ability of trucks is not as efficient 

as that of passenger cars is in the horrible severity of 

inJuries when a truck ls involvede 

We would like to point out, however, that no law is better 

than its enforcement, and that a statute requiring any speed 

differential will be ineffective unless it is enforced better 

than the 50-mile limit is currently enforced for buses and 

commercial vehicles in many areas of our state todayo 
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We recommend that Assembly Bill 442 be amended to contain 

the above recommendations and we do not en~orse it as it now 

stands. Thank you& 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mro Flynn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No questionso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mr. Keegano 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEGAN: I wondered, M~. Schultze, if your 

organization has any statement with respect to the two other 

measures which we have before us this morning? Do you have any 

remarks to address specifically to the licensing bill? 

MRe SCHULTZE: We have not prepared a statemento But if I 

could be permitted to speak for myself and not for our organization, 

in view of the fact that we have not discussed this in a meeting 

of all of our club representatives - 1 don't wish to speak for 

them\ - but giving you my personal experience as a young truck 

driver years ago and as a trailer driver today, I think that 

very definitely the driver of a huge vehicle - I haven't put any 

weight on that - a huge vehicle - should have special examination, 

especially special health examinationo And as I have mentioned 

t,o some of you folks before, I think that you gentlemen 

in the Assembly and the Senate could well propose a bill that 

would license automobile mechanics who work on the steering gear 

and brake systems of all vehicleso I will get my head in the noose 

for that one, but that is the way 1 feel personallyo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Mro Wilsono 

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ That will be allo Thank you 9 Mrc SchultzeQ 

Mro Robert Nagy. 
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ROBERT NAGY: Well, I am Just 1 speaking for myselfo I 

drive a truck for a living about nine years nowo And the way I 

see it, most accidents are caused by cars being piled in the back 

of trucks because the bumper on the back of a truck is not low 

enough for a car bumper and all you are hit1ting is tino And if 

they had a bill that would make all trucking concerns have a 

bumper as wide as a truck and low enough for a car bumper, I 

don't believe those twelve people who got killed in the North 

Brunswick accident would have been killedo And there was a woman 

killed on the 20th of November at one o 9clock who got pushed 

under another truck by a truck and my brother-in-law got killed 

that night at 10:45 because there was no bumper on the back of 

the trailero If there had been a bumper 9 I think you would hit 

more iron which is as you know much stronger than that tin and 

these accidents wouldn 1 t happen like that and I think a lot more 

people would be alive todayo 

Also there is one thing that somebody mentioned about log 

books, that all drivers have to have a log book, wh,ich is correcto 

But you can also have two log books which you can buy at any 

truck terminalo You can keep one log for your personal use, 

which I have done before when I drQve as an independent driver, 
\ 

and that allows you to drive as many hours as you feel like 

drivinge Then you have the log book that your company issues 

and you rave to turn a log in every day of your driving. But 

any time you are stopped by the cops on a spot check, you show 

the phony log book and they canvt tell the difference. There 

should be something set up where you couldnut buy these log bo9ks 

any place you stoppede Most of these accidents are caused by 

- 59 -

" 



"'· 

drivers who drive 15 hours a day and as far as that special 

license, I don't see where that is going to do us any goodo 

I donvt have any special license to drive and I consider myself 

as good a driver, if not better, than anybody in the room because 

I do that for a living. You can make a speech better than I can 

because you do that for a livingo 

As far as that tachometer is concerned, I can give you one 

exampleo We had a driver take over another truck in this firm 

that I drive for, wiich I am not going to mention by name because 

I am down here on my own. This driver had a truck before and 

tampered with the tachometer and he made it about 15 miles an 

hour differento This driver was coming down the road at 55 miles ' 

an hour and the cop got him at 55 and the tachometer showed 40 

miles an houro So they can be tampered witho I don 9 t know the 

way to do it, but if I had one in my truck, I guess I couldo 

Most firms that I know of have tachometeres in all open-road 

trucks that go over a 50-mile radius and the firm that I drive 

for also has the same thingo All local trucks don't have them 

because there is no use for them. That ls all I have to sayo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN~ Mra Nagy~ when you say some of these 

drivers are driving 15 and 16 hours, do you mean they are driving 

that long for themselves, independent drivers, private owners, or 

driving for companies? 

MRo NAGY: Private ownerso In other words, people that 

don 7 t have the IoC.C. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ~hen you say people who don 7 t have the 

loC.Co, such as yourself, if you bought a truck, you might be 
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inclined to drive for a longer period of time than you would want 

to drive if you were working for someone else, for an employero 

MRo NAGY: Correct and when you own a truck on your own or 

let's say you own three or four trucks but you can't buy an IoCoCo 

All the big firms have it 9 but you are a small man and you can't 

get ito I used to drive for a man that had six trucks and we 

used to pull produceo I used to drive 14 or 15 hours a day and 

night and I have learned through experience that driving like 

that doesn't pay because you don't fall asleep behind the wheel, 

but you don 9 t have you mind on your driving. I drive now 8 and 9 

hours a day and not conti~uous driving; that is, driving to, let 7 s 

say Philadelphia, unloading and coming back where there is a 

break-off of at least four hours of driving timeo And I feel 

that my driving has improved a great deal since I used to drive 

for this other firmo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Do you drive now under IoCoCo? 

MRo NAGY: Yes, siro 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Thank you very much, Mro Nagy, you are 

one of the few public-spirited citizens who took time to come 

today and we appreciate your thoughtse 

MRo NAGY: I got a day offo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I wonder if we could recall the members 

of the New Jersey Motor Truck Association just to ask them about 

this dual log book situatione Would you care to come back? 

This is Mro Dameoo You just heard the statement made that 

you can have dual log bookso What are your comments on that? 

MRo DAMEO: Well, we as certificated operators wouldn't 

know of a situation such as the gentleman before me just statedo 

As I got his remarks, these log books ar~ for sale at places 
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other than the certificated operator's terminals. We, as a 

certificated operator, issue a log to each man on the first day 

of each month. The log is good for a month and that is the only 

log he gets, and that is turned in nightly at the end of his 

trip and it is a matter of recor4. Now, if a situation like this 

exists, it is something that we don't know anything abouto 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Is the log prepared on a form established 

by law or is the form established by each corporation? 

MRo DAMEO: It ls a form established by law by the Federal 

government, the Interstate Commerce Commission, and it is a 

standard form and as each sheet is torn out of the log, one sheet 

remains in and one sheet is turned into the terminal and you have 

31 running days and there is a recap on the inside of the cover 

so that the recap of hours is kept right in order all the time 

and we have complete control over our drlvers 9 logs in that manner. 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: It requires a signature of the driver each 

day? 

lVIR. D.AMEO: That 1 s correct - each day the time that he 

started, the time that he ended and what he did during the day 

at given points, time for loading and unloading, eating his 

meals, lay-over timeg points of entry of different states and 

departure, and the termination time and pointe 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: I presume there is an I.C.C. penalty for 

fraudulent logso 

MR •. DAMEO: Yes.. There is a $500 minimum mandatory penalty 

qn the operator and a penalty on the driver of $50 for falsifying 

the log., 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Where do you obtain these logs? 
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MR. DAJVIEO: These logs are obtained from the various 

printers that make standard documents and forms of all kinds 

and we can procure them through our state agency or our national 

agencyo 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is there any special form you have to 

fill out when you are requesting them7 

MRo DAMEO: What is that, sir? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is there any special form you would have 

to fill out when you are requesting a new supply of log books? 
. 

MRo DAMEO: Noo You order them through your regular channel 

and they are supplied to you. And incidentally 9 may I say at 

this point - I didn't finish the question that you asked before 

- the driver must make out a log for his days off as well as 

the days he 1s workingo He has to make them out for a Saturday 

and a Sunday if they happen to be two normal days off or a holidayo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Thank you very mucho That will be al 1. 

Mr. C. E. Englero Mr. Engler is the representative of the 
I 

Engler Instrument Company. 

Co Eo ENGLER: I am here primarily to answer any questions 

that undoubtedly some of you have in regard to the tachographo 

I say I am going to try to answer them; I am not prepared to answer 

anything you might ask, but I will tryo 

Basically this is a recording speedometer which can in 

effect take the place of your speedometer or it can be installed 

separately from your speedometer in conjunction with it. It has 

a large face which is easily read, designed for safety in that 

respect. Further, it has a chart or chartso There are various 

modelso This happens to be a seven-day model, which is capable 
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of running for seven complete days without refillingo It records 

speedj mileage, stops and distance between stops, length of 

time each stop took, and the actual speed at any given pointo 

Just in general 9 there are a couple of statements I would 

like to make on what I have heard here in the mBeting roomo One 

question came up in regards to accuracya I am not prepared to 

give you any specific figures on that other than these instru-

ments are considerably more accurate than your speedometers 

which are notably inaccurateo Further, this particular instrument 

here as well as others have been held up in actual court cases after 

they have gom through various tests for accuracyo This particular 

instrument was held up in a Canadian case in a 20 mile-an-hour 

zone and it exonerated the driver from being accusedo It hap-

pened to be a case where he killed a child in a 20 mile-an-hour 

zone and it freed the driver of that charge because the chart 

showed he was not going over 20 miles an houro So these instru-

ments act to the benefit of the driver as well as safety purposes 

for everybody 1 s interesto 

Another point that was mentioned, that no other states have 

any laws requiring the use of this instrument. I believe that is 

incorrect and it can readily be checked because I think it is 

New York State that has a law requiring the use of tachographs 

on certain vehicles and further, I believe it requires that 

any vehicle coming into the State of New York in this particular 

type of vehicle range is required to us~ a tachographj not just 

New York vehicles. I say I believe that is true and you can 

readily check thato 

Furtherj it is my understanding that there are many countries 

- 64 -



l 

that are commencing to get into the program throughout Asia and 

South America and for years, as I understand it, Europe has 

had s~veral countries that have req~ired the use of tachographs 

on various weights of trucks or busesa I am not familiar with 

the laws, but they are used quite readily throughout Europea 

Another point is that this thing has another safety factoro 

These instruments have another safety factor on them and that is 

a speed warning light which can be pre-set at a given speed, again 

as an aid to the drivero 

It has been mentioned that this Instrument is not tamper-proofo 

Nothing is tamper-proofo That is true. But as you see, it has a 

keyo Further, these have been used in this country voluntarily b~ 

many trucking companies and they have even given the keys to the 

drivers when they are only a 24~hour model to change the chart 

themselves, under the theory that the drivers are becoming conscious 

of the fact that these instruments can actually be of benefit to 

them by helping them to improve their driving habits and also 

helping them to watch their speedo They donwt wart to lose their 

licenseso That is their businesso They are anxious to stay within 

the speed law, the same as you or lo There are speed warning 

mechanisms being installed in new cars for that very purpose, to 

help people going over the speed limit unintentionally, which un-

doubtedly you have done and so have le 

Another thing is in improving their driving habits, it tends 

to make the driver more regular rather than laying over a little bit 

longer at one spot than he might ordinarily and trying to catch 

up or going without sleep in an effort to catch upo 
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One other thing - and then I am through - there are a great 

many companies in this country today - and I am not prepared 

to give you figures - that have these installed not necessarily 

this make 9 but tachographs 1n general in varying quantities in 

some of your larger fleets as well as your smaller onesj and again 

this is dore on their own primarily in an effort to create safety 

and improve thevr routing schedules 9 etco I would suggest that 

you check with some of these firms and some of them are quite 

sizeable with a great deal of analytical background to give you 

quite a detailed answer on ito That is all I have to sayo If 

there are any questions that anybody has 9 I would be glad to try 

to answer themo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIELg Mro Flynno 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNNg No questionso 

CHAIRML\N CRABIELg Mro Keegano 

ASSEMBLYMAN KEEG.ANg No questionso 

CHAIRMAN CRABIELg What is the cost of these? 

MRo ENGLER~ Roughly in the range of $1000 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL~ Is that the bare cost? 

MRo ENGLER: That is the bare costo Insta11ed 9 they usually 

take the place of the speedometero They are put on the dashboard 

where there is room or on a bracket formo There is another cost 

involved for getting them installeda 

One other thlng 9 I have some literature I can leave with you 

if you like which will explain some of the detailso 

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSONg What is the normal maintenance item on 

these things? What is the thing that goes wcong most and what 

does it generally cost to repair it? 
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MRo ENGLER: The instrument itself has a very good record 

maintenancewise compared to instruments in general. One of our 

major crre s are cable problems, but you have that cable breakage 

with your speedometers tooo But some people say trese cause more 

strain on the cableo Well, you can put a heavier cable ino How-

ever, these things have been improved nowo This particular one 

is a magnetic type of instrument as compared with a centrifugal 

force one and requires less wear, I believe, than your speedometero 

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: What is the normal life of one of those 

machines? 

MRo ENGLER: Without any maintenance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Yeso 

MRo ENGLER: That is hard to say, but I would say that with 

a minimum of maintenance, it would outlast your trucko 

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: It will outlast the truck with normal 

maintenance? 

MRo ENGLER: That is my opinionQ I have no figures on thats 

I would be glad to get them if anybody requires themo 

CHAIRMAN CRABIEL: Thank you very much, Mro Englero 

According to my list, that is the extent of the people 

who asked to talko Have I missed anyone? Is there anyone else 

who cares to talk on these bills? 

I might say as I outlined before that the record of this 

hearing will be turned over to the 1960 Assembly for whatever 

action they decide to take on ito we appreciate your attendance 

and trust we have all learned somethingo 

The rearing is adjournedo 
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